
 

 

WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
REGULAR MEETING 

March 9, 2016 
 

A Regular Meeting of the Warren Zoning Board of Appeals was called on Wednesday, March 
9, 2016 at 7:30 p.m. in the Warren Community Center Auditorium, 5460 Arden Avenue, 
Warren, Michigan 48092. 
 
Members of the Board present: 
Roman Nestorowicz, Chairman 
Judy Furgal, Vice-Chairwoman 
Sherry Brasza, Secretary 
Jeremy Fisher, Asst. Secretary 
Henry Brasza 
Ann Pauta 
Albert Sophiea 
 

Members of the Board absent: 
Charles Anglin 
Richard Tabbi III 
 
Also present: 
Roxanne Canestrelli, City Attorney 
Everett Murphy, Chief Zoning Inspector 
Steve Watripont, Zoning Inspector 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Chairman Nestorowicz called the meeting to order at 7:35 p.m. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. ROLL CALL 
 

 Secretary Brasza stated we received word that Board Member Anglin is unavailable for 
this meeting and at this point have not heard from Board Member Tabbi. 

 
 Motion: 
 Secretary S. Brasza made the motion to excuse Board Member Anglin and Chairman 

Nestorowicz supported the motion. 
 
 Voice Vote: 
 A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (7 – 0). 

 
4. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

 
Motion: 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 2 

 

 

Board Member Furgal made the motion to adopt the agenda. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza made a change to the agenda that item number 6 public hearing 
was asked to be removed by the petitioner and item number 7 was asked to be re-
moved by the petitioner’s representative.  
 
Board Member Furgal asked if they’re being rescheduled. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza said they are not being rescheduled, they’re being removed. 
 
Motion: 
Board Member Furgal made the motion to adopt the agenda and Board Member 
Sophiea supported the motion. 
 
Voice Vote: 
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (7 – 0). 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz has a motion to remove the two items by Board Member Furgal; 
supported by Board Member Sophiea.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz informed both items are being removed and will be resubmitted 
at a later time. If you are here for item number 6, which was the public hearing for Mr. 
Richard Viano on 4536 Ten Mile or item number 7, which was a public hearing for TGM 
Properties at 26160 Groesbeck. Those were removed from tonight’s agenda and will 
be resubmitted at a future time. 

 
5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF the Special Meeting of February 24, 2016. 
 

Approval of minutes was taken during item number 8. 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT: Richard Viano-USE- 
                (Rescheduled from 1/13/16) 

REPRESENTATIVE:   Barry L. Brickner 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  4536 Ten Mile Road 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-29-103-003 
ZONE:     R-1-C 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to:-USE- 
Continue two dwellings on the same parcel located in a single-family residential zone. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4.17 (a): a non-conforming building… or use thereof shall NOT be structurally 
changed, altered or enlarged… 
Section 15.07 Side yards on interior lot lines: Side yards in C-3 are not required 
along an interior side lot line where all walls of buildings, abutting upon such interior 
side lot line are wholly without windows. If windows or openings are provided, a side 
yard of not less than ten (10) feet shall be provided.  
Section 15.01 Uses in C-3 (b): Storage yards are not allowed in C-3. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 3 

 

 

Section 17.02 (s): Open storage may not exceed 50% of the gross floor area… 
Section 17.02 (s): The designated area shall always be hard surfaced… 
 
Removed during the adoption of the agenda. 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING APPLICANT: TGM Properties 
LLC-USE- 

(Rescheduled from 5/27/15, 7/8/15, 8/26/15 & 12/9/15) 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Robert J. Tobin 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  26160 Groesbeck 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-24-253-005 
ZONE:     C-3 and 30 ft. “P” zone along Groesbeck 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to:-USE- 
1. Allow a non-conforming residential building to be used as a beauty salon existing at 

no less than 8’ of the north property line. 
2. Allow a 100’ x 245’ storage area for towed vehicles in a C-3. 
3. Eliminate hard surfacing in the vehicle storage area, allowing MDOT 22 A GR., but 

we are providing site storm water drainage of this lot.  
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4.17 (a): a non-conforming building… or use thereof shall NOT be structurally 
changed, altered or enlarged… 
Section 15.07 Side yards on interior lot lines: Side yards in C-3 are not required 
along an interior side lot line where all walls of buildings, abutting upon such interior 
side lot line are wholly without windows. If windows or openings are provided, a side 
yard of not less than ten (10) feet shall be provided.  
Section 15.01 Uses in C-3 (b): Storage yards are not allowed in C-3. 
Section 17.02 (s): Open storage may not exceed 50% of the gross floor area… 
Section 17.02 (s): The designated area shall always be hard surfaced… 
 
Removed during the adoption of the agenda. 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING APPLICANT: Suez 
Motel/Bhanu (Ben) Patel 
  (Rescheduled from 2/10/16) 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Greg Morgan/Phillips Sign and Lighting 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  3333 Eight Mile Road 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-31-456-010 
ZONE:     C-2 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
Replace the existing projecting wall signs with new projecting wall signs as follows: 
 Sign #1: “SUEZ” – 178.625” x 60” = 74.43 sq ft 
 Sign #2: “MOTEL” – 202” x 42” = 58.92 sq ft 
 Sign #3: “SHOWTIME/ESPN” – 32.25” x 36” = 8.06 sq ft 
TOTAL = 141.41 sq ft of wall signage. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 4 

 

 

Section 4A.11 (32) Projecting sign: A sign that is affixed to any building or part 
thereof, or to any structure and projects out by more than eighteen (18) inches. 
Section 4A.35 (c): Total wall signage of a size not to exceed forty (40) sq ft shall be 
allowed for each business in C-1, C-2, C-3, M-1 and M-2. 
 
Board Member Furgal notified they forgot to do the minutes. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated he realized that. He asked if the petitioner could wait one 
moment; he forgot one item. 
 

5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF the Special Meeting of February 24, 2016. 
 
Motion: 
Board Member H. Brasza made a motion to approve the minutes; Supported by Board 
Member Pauta. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated motion by Board Member Brasza and support by Board 
Member Pauta.  
 
Voice Vote: 
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (7 – 0). 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked the petitioner to state his name, address and the reason 
for his petition. 
 
Greg Morgan with Phillip Sign and Lighting, 40920 Executive Drive in Harrison 
Township. 
 
Bhanu Patel, owner of the Suez Motel. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked the reason for their petition. 
 
Bhanu Patel explained that in a previous meeting there was a discrepancy with the 
diagram, or the drawing of the sign. Since, they have submitted to the Board the 
correct drawing that shows it’s exactly in the same position as the previous sign and 
also they have now submitted to the Board a permit from MDOT that the Board did not 
have. So, as the Board can see from the drawings provided, the sign is over the walk 
way, it has been like that for almost sixty (60) years. During this period they have not 
had a single incident where someone got hurt from a falling piece of sheet medal. This 
sign, however, is corroding and is now a potential for their patrons, as well as the 
general public using that sidewalk. They would like the Board to grant them the permit 
before it is too late. They have hired Phillips Sign and Company, a professional 
company, to replace the faces of the cabinet. The sign will not only be safe, but will be 
attractive and will also be energy efficient because they will be using LED lighting. 
They would also like the Board to note that over the thirteen (13) years they have 
owned the motel, they have made many positive changes to the building. Example: 
they have changed all of their exiting windows by replacing them with new energy 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 5 

 

 

efficient windows; they’ve also removed wood beams that were potential hazard from 
falling, and have replaced those wood beams with attractive awning. They have also 
maintained the exterior very well by painting it every year. This motel is the nicest 
motel on Eight Mile Road. Also, please consider the safety of everyone using the 
sidewalk in front of the motel. They’re doing their part of the Eight Mile Beautification 
Project, they will appreciate the permit the Board will grant them today. He thanked the 
Board. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked if there were any member of the public that would like to 
speak. 
 
Everett Murphy, Zoning Inspector, wanted to clear up a couple of items. From the last 
time they provided a signed drawing that was out of perspective, so he did have them 
correct that and the Board has that in front of them tonight. He doesn’t think the Board 
received copies of the permit from MDOT. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated one copy. 
 
Everett Murphy asked if everyone got a copy of that. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated just the one copy. 
 
Everett Murphy said the Board had one, he as one as well, so they do know that they 
did obtain a permit from MDOT. He knows that the City Attorney did research about 
whose right of way that that was. He thinks that’s all he had and he just wanted to clear 
up those items. 
 
Joseph Hunt, 8306 Stanley, homeowner and tax payer in Section 15, stated that as far 
as listening to the petitioners request to improve the signage over there at the Suez 
Motel between Ryan and Dequindre, he’s fully in support of it. As the Board knows, 
Eight Mile is a Boulevard and for those people that are looking for a place to stay in the 
evening hours, he believes Eight Mile is 40 MPH down that stretch, he believes the 
signage should all of a sudden improve the area and he’s fully behind the petitioners 
request. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz closed the public hearing. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza stated they did receive from MDOT an individual construction 
permit for operations within the state highways right of ways giving them permission to 
go over the sidewalk.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz turned this matter over to the Board. 
 
Board Member Pauta thinks that due to the fact that MDOT has approved this and it’s 
staying within the boundaries of the previous sign she would like to make a motion.  
 
Motion: 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 6 

 

 

Board Member Pauta made the motion to approve the variance as requested. Based 
on it being not a detriment to the area and lack of identification. Board Member H. 
Brasza supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz has a motion by Board Member Pauta, support by Board 
Member H. Brasza to grant the petitioners request since it’s not a detriment to the 
neighborhood; lack of identification. Roll Call.  
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (6 – 1). 
 
Board Member Pauta   Yes. 
Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Fisher   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Secretary S. Brasza   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Sophiea  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Furgal   No, detriment to the area. 
Chairman Nestorowicz  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
 
The petitioner’s request has been GRANTED. 
 

9.      PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT: Mr. Corry Johnson 
     (Rescheduled from 2/10/16) 

REPRESENTATIVE:   Same as above. 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  4090 Tuxedo Drive 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-05-102-010 
ZONE:     R-1-C 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
1. Construct a 3050 sq ft garage. 
2. Construct a garage with an eve height of 16 ft. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 5.01 paragraph (i): …All garages and/or accessory building shall not contain 
more than seven hundred (700) square feet of floor area. Only one (1) private garage 
for each residential lot is allowed. 
Section 4.19 Paragraph (b): …Detached garages shall not exceed one (1) story or 
ten (10) feet in height to the eaves. 
 
Corry Johnson, 4090 Tuxedo Drive, explained last month they had a discussion and 
afterwards he went home, he wasn’t sure how he was supposed to proceed 
procedurally. He went to the Zoning Office and had talked to Brian and he identified a 
couple of things. One being, his variance wasn’t complete in all the details he would 
need a variance for. One being that the house has this section in the middle that has a 
great room which is higher than a 10 foot eve, which a ranch style house, the 
ordinances say it has to have a ten foot eve. So, that would be something he would 
have to add to his variance, which is something he’ll have to resubmit for next month. 
Also, in addition to that, they discovered that part of the variance last month he was 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 7 

 

 

simply stating that he wanted an ‘x’ square footage of garage, but as the Board can 
see here, there is an attached garage on the house and he was talking all last month 
about nothing but a detached garage. So, the variance would need to say that it would 
be that square footage would be split between the two locations. The Board asked him 
to come back and give a smaller number. His smaller number is 2,800 square feet 
total. The reason for that is the lot is big enough for four standard Warren size lots.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz said the information they have in front of the Board it just talks 
about one garage and now they see two garages. He’s just worried that they don’t 
have the information in front of them to… 
 
Corry Johnson said that’s what he was clarifying, they came to the conclusion that his 
variance did not have the correct verbiage in it last month.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz wondered if it would make sense to, he knows it’s been 
postponed once, but post pone to where he can give the information with the 
measurements regarding the attached and detached garage. He just worries the Board 
won’t be able to make a good decision. 
 
Unknown resident yelled from the audience about public feedback. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza said her thought is that with this new information given, the Board 
would need to know more now. Prior to this, she was not aware that there was a home 
being built, let alone another garage. So with this information given, the Board would 
either, if you’re going to break it into to or put it into one, they’ll have to repost.  
 
Corry Johnson said which because she said two things. They would need to repost if… 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz called Mr. Murphy up to speak on this item. 
 
Everett Murphy asked if they had an existing attached garage. 
 
Corry Johnson stated no they have an existing detached garage. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated they couldn’t hear. 
 
Corry Johnson explained there is an existing detached garage, no attached garage. 
 
Everett Murphy said they would remove the other to put up this new garage. 
 
Corry Johnson stated there is currently three buildings on the property: the house, the 
detached garage and a barn. All of that would be removed, it’s in the plot plan he 
provided. All of that would be gone and there would now only be two buildings now on 
the lot: the house and the detached garage, and the house having an attached garage 
as well.  
 
Everett Murphy asked if the new house does. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 8 

 

 

 
Corry Johnson said no, the new house does.  
 
Everett Murphy said it could go forward because he’s asking for a lower amount and 
the other structures were to be removed, so that could be a condition. If he wants to 
build a new house as well with an attached garage, he’s going to have to come back 
when he wants to build the house for another variance, but he could go ahead with this 
today because there is no attached garage on the house and the other accessory 
structures would be removed.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked how much is the garage, the detached garage being 
requested for.  
 
Everett Murphy believes he was changing that from the 3,050 to the 2,800. 
 
Corry Johnson said the 2,800 would be the total combined garage space between the 
two, the attached and detached together. 
 
Board Member Furgal said that needs to be republished.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz agreed that needs to be republished. 
 
Corry Johnson explained it was on the plot plan.  
 
Secretary S. Brasza said they do not get the plot plan. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated it was not published properly.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz explained it wasn’t published as two garages, and the problem 
is… 
 
Corry Johnson said that’s what he discovered when he went to talk to Brian at the 
Zoning Office.  
 
Everett Murphy thinks they would need to get the new information and repost it.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz thinks it would have to be moved out so he can get with Mr. 
Murphy or someone at the office with the correct dimensions and it can be reposted 
properly, neighbors will get notification at that time. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza informed the April 13th meeting is booked solid, so the 27th would 
be available. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked if the 27th of April would be fine. 
 
Motion: 
Secretary S. Brasza made the motion to reschedule to April 27, 2016. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 9 

 

 

 
Chairman Nestorowicz wondered when the office would need the information for it to 
be posted. He wants to make sure everything comes to the office by what date? 
 
Secretary S. Brasza stated end of March. 
 
Corry Johnson said three weeks ahead, right? 
 
Secretary S. Brasza said yes, end of March. The Board needs fifteen days, so it would 
be out first week of April.  
 
Everett Murphy explained they’ll get with him because they’ll need time to process that.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz said to Mr. Murphy that when it does get reposted, the Board 
would like to see a better plot plan with the measurements of the new garage and 
showing the new house with that garage also.  
 
Corry Johnson said they’re negotiating a smaller value but it’s already on the plot plan.  
 
Secretary S. Brasza said they don’t have that plot plan; it’s not in front of the Board. 
 
Corry Johnson said it’s part of the submission.  
 
Steve Watripont said they do but not with the right dimensions or anything located spe-
cifically stated on it.  
 
Secretary S. Brasza thanked Mr. Watripont.  
 
Board Member Furgal supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz has a motion by Secretary S. Brasza, support by Board Mem-
ber Furgal. 
 
Voice Vote: 
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (7 – 0). 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated this item will be reposted and notification will go out to 
neighbors when they have better information in front of them. 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT: Leslie Lemanski 
 REPRESENTATIVE:   Same as above. 

COMMON DESCRIPTION:  5121 Mary Court 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-17-452-032 
ZONE:     R-1-C 

 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
Retain fence in the front yard as per the plan; 39 feet along the northeast property line. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 10 

 

 

ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4D.08 Front yard fences: No fence, wall or landscape screen shall be 
constructed between the established building line and the front property line…  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked for the petitioner to please state their name and address 
for the record. 
 
Leslie Lemanski, homeowner 5121 Mary Court.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked the reason for the petition. 
 
Leslie Lemanski is here to ask for the Board’s support by approving a variance that will 
allow her to keep a fence on her property. This fence separates her driveway from a 
neighbors adjacent driveway. The fence resolves an unreasonable burden where safe-
ty and unauthorized access are the main issues. In addition to the details she provided 
in her application and the photos, today she also provided some other photos, similar 
properties that have the same layout as hers; adjacent driveways with fences in be-
tween. Along with her application that she did not state, which she would like to men-
tion here, she would like to make one modification to the installed cedar fencing and 
that is, if it’s approved, she would like to move one of the posts one foot back from the 
city sidewalk.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated this is a public hearing and asked if any members of the 
public would like to speak on this item. 
 
Mary Vienneau, 5133 Mary Court, lives next door to the house with the fence. She has 
lived there for nine years and there has never been a fence or anything separating the 
driveway. Her driveway is narrow and that fence makes it an obstacle and a nuisance 
to get in and out of their driveway and be able to open their car doors when they pull up 
into the driveway. So, it’s kind of an obstacle and a nuisance to have a fence there. 
There’s no real purpose for it, they don’t use their driveway, they have their own en-
trance to their driveway, and they don’t use their driveway, so she doesn’t really see a 
purpose for the fence. There is not enough room with the driveways the way they’re 
situated to have a fence there.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz turned the matter over to the Board. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza said there was correspondence into the zoning office, unsigned of 
neighbors that were both not in favor, there were two correspondence. 
 
Board Member Furgal asked where the petitioner was. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked the petitioner to please come back up to the podium. 
 
Board Member Furgal said in her presentation, she didn’t mention what her hardship 
was why or why she decided to do this. She did a really nice job filling the worksheet 
out, so she should probably tell the Board what it says. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 11 

 

 

 
Leslie Lemanski agreed saying absolutely. She asked if Board Member Furgal was re-
ferring to the worksheet she submitted with the application.  
 
Board Member Furgal said yes. 
 
Leslie Lemanski explained the safety issues; there are several. When they are using 
their driveway the same time the neighbors are using the driveway, entering, exiting 
and using, there are safety issues. There are handicapped pickups two times a week 
from her driveway, so that creates an obstacle for somebody who is handicapped that 
lives at her residence. Other safety issues, the times they’re entering and exiting their 
doors can collide because there is no such barrier. The new vehicle she had bought in 
2013, the only door ding she ever received to this date was while it was parked in the 
driveway. For safety alone, it is necessary for them to have some type of a barrier. She 
mentioned the unauthorized access because that has been a major problem in the 
past. So, with the neighbors and their five vehicles on a regular basis of where they 
would see them back up to the sidewalk, going around their vehicle to use her drive-
way to get in and out of their backyard. So, it has been an issue in the past, it hasn’t 
only once but it has been a repeated issue. Respectfully, with what the neighbor did 
say, she would like to respond that it is an obstacle for them because they’re very 
much used to using their driveway. She doesn’t feel comfortable allowing it, it is not au-
thorized, she doesn’t approve of it. Regarding maintenance, safety and unauthorized 
access, those are some of her key points. She doesn’t feel that it’s a detriment at all, 
it’s a beautiful cedar fence. The pictures she’s provided of other comparable properties 
includes chain link fence only. She feels like aesthetics, it’s absolutely pleasing, it 
serves a purpose and it’s very much needed. She would like to very much enjoy her 
driveway as a private property owner, just as every other property owner can in the 
City of Warren. As she said, she doesn’t feel like it’s a detriment. It does not obscure 
any type of visibility whatsoever. Those are her main points. 
 
Board Member Furgal thanked her. She asked if she would like to, instead of pulling it 
one foot back, if she might take two sections away and it might keep people from going 
around and using her driveway to go into their backyard and that way it’s a little bit 
more reasonable.  
 
Leslie Lemanski said she would like to agree, however, she does not. She does not be-
lieve that two rails worth of fence, considering that it’s only forty feet long, is reasona-
ble. She still believes there would be unauthorized access with a vehicle that she does 
not feel comfortable or safe allowing on her property. 
 
Board Member Furgal asked about one rail. 
 
Leslie Lemanski thinks that could be reasonable.  
 
Board Member Furgal thinks so. She explained that what the ordinance says is that 
she can’t have any, so it’s not unreasonable for the Board to ask to make somewhat of 
accommodation. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 12 

 

 

 
Leslie Lemanski said she is willing to compromise.  
 
Board Member Furgal said she would be willing to make a motion if she will take away 
the one rail. 
 
Leslie Lemasnki asked the one post, having the rail on a diagonal to meet the ground, 
is that considered reasonable, is that the compromise they’re talking about, remove 
that end post closest to the sidewalk? 
 
Board Member Furgal said she wanted to do that, she would have to remove two.  
 
Leslie Lemanski said that still allows vehicles to access and go around through her 
driveway. 
 
Board Member Furgal said no it shouldn’t. It should not, not to go around a vehicle to 
go into their backyard, using her driveway to go around, it should not.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz wanted to make a clarification. He asked Board Member Furgal 
that what she is talking about is the first post closes to the sidewalk, but that section 
would be removed.  
 
Board Member Furgal said that section would be removed. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked if it would actually start where the second post is.  
 
Leslie Lemanski pulled out the picture to get a better idea of that length. She asked to 
have one section removed. 
 
Board Member Furgal said the post that’s close to the sidewalk. 
 
Leslie Lemanski feels that is a good compromise. She can see that. 
 
Board Member Furgal said just take those three horizontal posts down and poles. 
 
Leslie Lemanski asked one post and three rails closest to the sidewalk.  
 
Board Member Furgal stated yes. 
 
Leslie Lemanski can agree to that.  
 
Motion: 
Board Member Furgal made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to… 
 
Board Member Pauta asked for the floor. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz told her to let Board Member Furgal finish. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 13 

 

 

 
Board Member Furgal continued her motion saying retain fence in the front yard as per 
the plan with the exception of the 39 feet along the northeast property line. She asked 
Leslie Lemanski if that’s ten feet. 
 
Leslie Lemanski replied perhaps, almost ten feet. She thinks they’re eight feet long 
rails. 
 
Board Member Furgal continued with 31 feet long on the northeast property line. Rea-
sons being: not unreasonable impact or burden, not self imposed and the property is 
unique.  
 
Secretary S. Brasza supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked if there was discussion. 
 
Board Member Pauta replied yes, she wanted to make sure this homeowner is going to 
maintain both sides. She asked if it was wood. 
 
Leslie Lemanski said yes, its cedar wood.  
 
Board Member Pauta asked her if she’s going to stain it or varnish it. 
 
Leslie Lemanski answer no, it’s not necessary to stain or varnish cedar. Cedar. She 
certainly understands the question about the maintenance. Her property is well main-
tained since they purchased the property they had to get a C of O, they pulled every 
and all necessary permits, her property has been well maintained since they purchased 
it. She has to say of the homes on the court, eight of them, they probably have the 
most upgraded and beautified home with the exception of the people on the corner, 
they are hard to beat. They do well maintain their property. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz has a motion by Board Member Furgal to approve the petition-
ers request with the exception made at 31 feet by removing the last post and rails; 
support by Secretary S. Brasza. Reasons being: not unreasonable request and it’s a 
unique property. 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (6 – 1). 
 
Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Secretary S. Brasza   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Fisher   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Pauta   No, it extends out too far, can’t see hardship. 
Board Member Sohpiea  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Chairman Nestorowicz  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 14 

 

 

The petitioner’s request has been GRANTED with the 31 feet condition. 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT: Mr. Jon Kaercher 
 REPRESENTATIVE:   Same as above. 

COMMON DESCRIPTION:  11091 Toepfer 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-34-255-027 
ZONE:     R-1-P 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
Retain a (9’ 10” x 11’ 6”) 113.09 sq ft shed that projects beyond the existing building 
lines of the principal building on the lot. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4.20 Paragraph (a): All detached accessory buildings shall conform to and 
shall not project beyond the existing building lines of the principal building on the lot. 
 
Jon Kaercher, 11091 Toepfer, introduced himself.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked if the microphone was on because it’s hard to hear him.  
 
Jon Kaercher said he is asking the Board to approve his variance for the shed that he 
has currently in his backyard. It’s kind of a large shed, he put it up there in 1998; 
moved in 1996 so it’s been there for a substantial amount of time, it’s a poly carbon 
and has some photos of it that he was going to post up on the screen. It has full size 
doors on it and everything else. It’s right at the end of the concrete, which is located on 
his property. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked if he would step a little closer to the microphone, it’s hard 
to hear him. 
 
Board Member Sophiea said he was having trouble hearing him. 
 
Jon Kaercher spoke into the mic asking if that was better. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz said that’s better. 
 
Jon Kaercher continued to explain he wants to keep it right where it’s at because his 
yard has a decline, it slopes quite substantially, and there’s clothes lines on either side 
he didn’t want to disrupt that. If he had to move the shed it would be in a situation 
where the shed would be off quilt and would have to pull the thing. When he purchased 
it, like he said, first time homeowner of a young family he didn’t realize he had have a 
permit to put up a shed to protect his property that was there. He showed the Board 
pictures of the shed and of the slope in the yard. The shed is up there right now and 
has been there for some time. It’s not an eyesore, it doesn’t prevent the neighbors from 
using their property or anything else like that. He showed another picture of the incline 
in the backyard, why it slopes and what he put it on what was currently available at that 
time, which was a concrete slab. Because of those contours, they never talked about 
the yard and he was unaware that he needed a permit, again, first time owning a 
home. He put it on there; it’s been pretty much undisturbed all these years.  



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 15 

 

 

 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated this is a public hearing and asked if there were any 
members from the public wishing to speak on this item.  
 
No audience. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz turned this matter over to the Board. He had one question 
because when he drove by, there is no garage on this site, it looks like the shed it just 
put on the driveway that might have lead to an old garage maybe. 
 
Jon Kaercher informed there was no garage at all. It was just the concrete was in place 
there and there was nothing there. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz had one concern that can actually be seen in the picture that he 
had; it looks like a crack. 
 
Jon Kaercher said the crack in the concrete and is aware of that. He informed it was 
just recent, in the last two years. If the Board looks at the medal base that’s on the 
bottom of there, that’s actually attached with bolts to the concrete so it might have been 
the stress, the movement of the weather that caused that eventually to crack like that; 
stress on the concrete itself. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz said he just had that concern. When he looked at the corner 
that is over the crack he worries that is a potential issue there. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza has a couple of concerns. Number one, he stated it literally is at 
the end of the driveway. 
 
Jon Kaercher said correct.  
 
Secretary S. Brasza informed sheds in the City of Warren are basically to put back 
behind the living structure so when driving down the street, look down the driveway 
and see a shed versus a garage. It looks like it’s not on a rat wall, slab; it’s just on a 
driveway slab.  
 
Jon Kaercher said correct. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza said that is another problem. Especially, with Chairman 
Nestorowicz stating the crack in it is going to cause some problems. She wishes all the 
homes in Warren didn’t have a slope in the backyard, and then she wouldn’t have a 
swimming pool in the spring and fall. She is going to have a hard time voting yes for 
this, she apologizes. She thinks it should be behind the house and she thinks it would 
be in his best interest to move it because of the shape it’s in on the bottom.  
 
Jon Kaercher probably wouldn’t move it, he would just take it down because it would 
cause too much damage to the structure itself to take it down because of the natures of 
the materials and everything, he would just take it down. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 16 

 

 

 
Board Member Furgal asked Mr. Murphy if he gets approval he is required to follow all 
the rules of having a shed, which means he has to put in a rat wall. She asked if he 
would have to do that work anyway. 
 
Everett Murphy said yes, he would have to do the rat wall on three sides of that 
driveway.  
 
Board Member Furgal asked Jon Kaercher if he understood that. 
 
Jon Kaercher replied yes, he does. He said the point of being here was to be able to 
leave it there and then can have that work done.  
 
Board Member Furgal said that’s what he’s interested in doing. 
 
Jon Kaercher is aware that the rat wall has to be put in. Before he even does anything 
to it he is making sure he can leave it there. If it’s going to be a situation, decrease the 
value he would just take it and maybe not have a shed or seek some alternate thing. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza said garage. 
 
Jon Kaercher said he would like that to put a garage but the value of the house isn’t 
there. 
 
Motion: 
Secretary S. Brasza made motion to deny the petitioner’s request to of a variance to 
have permission to have a 9’10” x 11’6” = 113.09 sq. ft. that projects beyond the 
existing buildings line of the principal building on the lot. Due to: self imposed and a 
detriment to the area. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz has a motion to deny.  
 
Board Member Sophiea supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz has a motion to deny the petitioners request by Secretary S. 
Brasza with support from Board Member Sophiea. So, voting yes in favor of the motion 
is actually a vote to deny. 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to deny and the motion failed (4 – 3). 
 
Secretary S. Brasza   Yes. 
Board Member Sophiea  Yes, to deny. 
Board Member Fisher   No, would allow the variance. 
Board Member H. Brasza  No, would allow the variance. 
Board Member Pauta   Yes, to deny. 
Board Member Furgal   No. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 17 

 

 

Chairman Nestorowicz  No, the petitioner should have a shed there. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza said that was 4-3. Four no’s, does not pass. New motion. 
 
Board Member H. Brasza wanted to clarify that he’s going to be building a whole new 
cement base for whatever he puts there, the Board is just voting on the location of it. 
 
Board Member Furgal said right. 
 
Motion: 
Board Member Furgal made a motion to approve the petitioners request to retain a 
9’10” x 11’6” = 113.09 sq. ft. shed that projects beyond the existing buildings line of the 
principal building on the lot with the requirement that he follow all the building permits, 
etc. that he needs to retain the shed. Reasons being: size and shape of the lot. 
 
Board Member H. Brasza supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz has motion by Board Member Furgal with support by Board 
Member H. Brasza to grant the petitioners request due to the size and shape of the lot. 
Roll call. 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (5 – 2). 
 
Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Fisher   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Secretary S. Brasza   No. 
Board Member Sohpiea  No. 
Chairman Nestorowicz  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
 
The petitioner’s request has been GRANTED. 
 

12. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT: Home Depot – Store #2702 
          Joe Schulte, Manager 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Kerm Billette, PCP 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  25879 Hoover Road 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-22-432-016 
ZONE:     C-2, C-1 & P 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED:  Permission to: 
1. Operate seasonal outdoor sales from March 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016 in the 

following areas: 
Area #1 labeled “Tent/Trees” 40’ x 130’ = 5,200 sq ft 
Area #2 labeled “Sheds” 20’ x 90’ = 1,800 sq ft 
Area #3 labeled “Plants” 20’ x 125’ = 2,500 sq ft 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 18 

 

 

      Total of 9,500 sq ft of seasonal outdoor sales as per the plan. 
2. Allow temporary outdoor storage in area #3, 27’ x 20’ = 540 sq ft for three (3) rental 

trailers as per the plan. 
3. Waive 100 parking spaces for the seasonal outdoor sale and temporary outdoor 

storage. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4.32 Paragraph (h) Item 22: One (1) parking space required for each 150 sq 
ft of floor space and outdoor sales/storage areas combined.  
Section 4.52 Paragraph (d): No sales activity or display of merchandise shall be 
permitted in the area designated for required off-street parking for the existing or 
temporary use. 
 
Kerm Billette, 38628 Warwickshire Drive in Sterling Heights, 48312, is here tonight with 
the store manager Joe Schulte. They’re requesting approval of the Board of their usual 
request for outdoor sales. They’re using the same site plan from last year; no changes, 
no additions, no deletions. (Background whispering) The request is to maintain the 
area for four trailers that were for rental and to waive the required parking spaces for 
the total outdoor sales. (Background whispering) He believes it was a total outdoor 
sales for the site, they have one area for sheds that is out of the way in the parking lot, 
then one area for the sale of landscape materials in front, and along the side the 
building where it’s easier to take the produce of the flowers and so forth inside the 
building is along the sidewalk. They feel as though that this has worked out very well 
over the past ten or twelve years with different managers using the same scheme for 
location of the produce and the location of the sheds. They’re presenting the petition 
tonight for approval. The manage here, Joe Shulte, can answer any questions.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz said this is a public hearing and asked if any members of the 
public would like to speak on this item. 
 
No audience. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz closed the public hearing and turned this matter over to the 
Board.  
 
Board Member H. Brasza wondered if anyone had any concerns otherwise he would 
make the motion.  
 
Motion: 
Board Member H. Brasza made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to 
conduct a seasonal outdoor sales operation in a P district from March 1, 2016 thru 
December 31, 2016, Area #1 labeled “Tent/Trees” 40’ x 130’ = 5,200 sq ft, Area #2 
labeled “Sheds” 20’ x 90’ = 1,800 sq ft, Area #3 labeled “Plants” 20’ x 125’ = 2,500 sq 
ft, Total of 9,500 sq ft of seasonal outdoor sales as per the plan; allow temporary 
outdoor storage in area #3, 27’ x 20’ = 540 sq ft for three (3) rental trailers as per the 
plan; waive 100 parking spaces for the seasonal sale and temporary outdoor storage. 
Reason being: needs approval of the Board and not a detriment to the area. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 19 

 

 

Board Member Pauta supports the motion.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz has a motion by Board Member H. Brasza, support by Board 
Member Pauta to grant the petitioners request, reasons being: needs approval by the 
Board and not a detriment to the area. He asked for a roll call.  
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (7 – 0). 
 
Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Sophiea  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Secretary S. Brasza   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Board Member Fisher   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
Chairman Nestorowicz  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
 
The petitioner’s request has been GRANTED. 
 

13. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT: Produce Palace International 
        Samuel and Sharon Hope Katz 
 REPRESENTATIVE:   Kerm Billette 

COMMON DESCRIPTION:  29300 Dequindre Road 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-07-351-002 
ZONE:     C-1 

 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
1. Conduct a seasonal outdoor sales operation in front of the store from April 1, 2016 

thru December 31, 2016. 
2. Waive eighty-five (85) parking spaces to operate the outdoor sales. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4.32 Paragraph (h) Item 22: One (1) parking space required for each 150 
square ft of floor space and outdoor sales areas combined. 
Section 4.52 Paragraph (d): No sales activity or display of merchandise shall be 
permitted in the area designated for required off-street parking for the existing or 
temporary use. 
 
Kerm Billette, 38628 Warwickshire Drive in Sterling Heights, is here tonight with Mrs. 
Katz to request approval of their usual outdoor sales of produce and flowers and so 
forth on the property. Same site plans used, there have been no changes from last 
year, exactly the same. The areas on there in front of the store is for the shelves and 
stands they use to put the flowers on. The area to the south of the building is used for 
the gravel and sand. Stone is for sale, as is landscaping materials. Parking for the truck 
they use to load and unload the material. There is nothing out in the parking lot, 
nothing to interfere with pedestrian traffic. They feel as though this layout has worked 
very well for the past years, about eleven years ago they started. It’s been a good 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 20 

 

 

fortune of the business, very attractive; they can sell flowers and things. He informed 
Mrs. Katz is here to answer any questions.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz said this is a public hearing and asked if there are any 
members of the public to make any comments. 
 
No audience.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz closed the public hearing and turned this matter over to the 
Board. 
 
Board Member Fisher asked if there were any questions from Board members so he 
could make a motion. 
 
Motion: 
Board Member Fisher made the motion to approve the variance requested to conduct a 
seasonal outdoor sales operation in front of the store from April 1, 2016 thru December 
31, 2016 and to waive eighty-five (85) parking spaces to operate the outdoor sales. 
Reasons being: not self imposed and not a detriment to the area. 
 
Board Member Pauta supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz has a motion by Board Member Fisher, support by Board 
Member Pauta to grant the petitioners request, reasons being: not self imposed and 
not a detriment to the area. 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (7 – 0). 

 

Board Member Fisher   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Sophiea  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Secretary S. Brasza   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Chairman Nestorowicz  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

 
The Petitioner’s request has been GRANTED. 
 
Sharon Katz thanked the Board and said she appreciated it. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz told her to have a great day. 
 

14. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT: Van Dyke Church of Christ 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Lynwood Shealy 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 21 

 

 

COMMON DESCRIPTION:  5201 Nine Mile Road 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-29-454-024 
ZONE:     C-1 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
Erect three (3) signs as follows: 
1. Wall sign “CHURCH OF CHRIST” 19” x 248.5” = 32.79 sq ft 
2. Wall sign “(cross)” 60” x 39” = 16.25 sq ft  

Total wall signage = 49.04 sq ft 
3. Remove the existing sign and install a sign 4’ x 5’ = 20 sq ft in addition to an LED 

message center 21” x 65” = 9.48 sq ft on the existing pole with a 7 ft under clear-
ance. 

ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4A.35 (c): Total wall signage of a size not to exceed forty (40) square feet 
shall be allowed for each business in commercial business and industrial districts 
zoned C-1, C-2, C-3, M-1 and M-2. 
Section 4A.14 Paragraph (a): Permitted signs. Signs that utilize flashing, blinking, in-
termittent or moving lights or exposed incandescent light bulbs. 
Section 4A.11 Item (7): Changeable Copy sign. A sign whose informational content 
can be changed or altered by manual, electric, electro-mechanical or electronic means.  
Section 4A.19: All freestanding, projecting and marquee signs shall have a clearance 
of ten (10) feet beneath the sign structure, excluding monument signs. 
 

Lynwood Shealy, 19135 Candlelight in Roseville, is here on behalf of the Van Dyke 
Church of Christ for the following reasons: they would like to replace and update their 
pole sign that sits closest to Nine Mile Road with a new LED sign, they would like to 
replace a sign on the building because it’s 250 feet from Nine Mile Road and it’s diffi-
cult to see it stated the Church of Christ and put a cross underneath it; these are the 
three variances in which they’re asking.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated this is a public hearing and asked if any members of the 
public would like to make any comments on this item. 
 
No audience.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz closed the public hearing and turned the matter over to the 
Board. He had one question; he heard that this has not gotten planning approval yet. 
He asked the petitioner if he had planning approval yet on this item.  
 
Lynwood Shealy said he filled out the necessary paperwork, that’s all he knows. Mr. 
Murphy assisted him. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz called for Mr. Murphy. 
 
Everett Murphy asked what planning approval he was referring to. He wondered if he 
was wondering about one to allow a church.  
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 22 

 

 

Chairman Nestorowicz said no and asked if they don’t need to approve signage. 
 
Everett Murphy informed this was existing, previously a church. 
 
Board Member Furgal said they’re just changing the signage. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz said no, it’s for the signage. 
 
Everett Murphy explained Planning Commission does not approve signs. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz replied ok. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza said it’s so nice to update, she likes seeing all the new signs and 
knowing times of service and such in lights. She informed them to not scroll, flash and 
change no more than every five minutes. 
 
Lynwood Shealy said Mr. Murphy had explained that to him and that’s not something 
they wish to do anyway. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza said beautiful, beautiful. She asked if there was any further dis-
cussion. 
 
Motion: 
Secretary S. Brasza made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to erect three 
signs as follows: 1) Wall sign “CHURCH OF CHRIST” 19” x 248.5” = 32.79 sq. ft.; 2) 
Wall sign “(cross)” 60” x 39” = 16.25 sq. ft., Total wall signage = 49.04 sq. ft.; 3) Re-
move the existing sign and install a sign 4’ x 5’ = 20 sq ft in addition to an LED mes-
sage center 21” x 65” = 9.48 sq ft on the existing pole with a 7 ft under clearance. Due 
to: Lack of identification and not a detriment to the area. 
 
Board Member Pauta supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz has a motion by Secretary S. Brasza, support by Board Mem-
ber Pauta to grant the petitioners request, reasons being: lack of identification and not 
a detriment to the neighborhood.  
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (7 – 0). 
 
Secretary  S. Brasza   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Fisher   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Sophiea  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 23 

 

 

Chairman Nestorowicz said yes, but before he does his vote for himself, she did not 

state the no flashing, blinking, scrolling and not changing the copy once every 

minutes, he realized. 

 

Secretary S. Brasza asked if it was in the ordinance. It’s the City’s ordinance.  

 

Everett Murphy was inaudible from audience.  

 

Secretary S. Brasza asked if they need to mention that every time. 

 

Everett Murphy said it’s a good idea.  

 

Chairman Nestorowicz informed the petitioner they normally mention that so that way 

they know that can’t have the flashing, blinking and the message can’t change any-

more than once every five minutes. 

 

Lynwood Shealy said when he was working with Mr. Everett, he made that clear. 

 

Chairman Nestorowicz just wanted to make sure he knew that.  

 

Chairman Nestorowicz  Yes. 

 

Lynwood Shealy thanked the Board. 
 
The Petitioner’s request has been GRANTED.  
 

15. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT: Hotz Catering 
          Richard Hotz, Owner 

REPRESENTATIVE:   Kerm Billette, PCP and Richard Hotz 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  20752 Ryan Road 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-32-355-032 
ZONE:     M-2 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
Allow storage of catering equipment such as grills, ovens, fryers, steam tables and 
smokers. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 17.02 Item (s): Open storage other than junk. All open storage shall be 
located in a designated area approved by the Planning Commission as a part of site 
plan approval. The area shall be enclosed on three (3) sides… Shall not be located in 
any area required for parking space and is necessary to meet the minimum 
requirements of Section 4.32 of this ordinance. Further, the designated area may not 
exceed fifty (50) percent of the gross floor area. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 24 

 

 

 
Kerm Billette, 38628 Warwickshire Drive in Sterling Heights, is here tonight with Mr. 
Hotz. 
 
Board Member Furgal said the Board can’t hear him. 
 
Kerm Billette continued to say from Hotz Catering Company that is requesting approval 
of a different type of area for storage. The Board of Appeals granted on July 9, 2003 
permission to expand the catering service, hard surface and parking area and so forth, 
with the condition that only one outside storage would be ten pig roasters and two re-
frigerator semi trailers. Things have changed, nobody wants to roast pigs anymore, 
they desire catered service, good silverware, good dishes and usually nothing, they 
may have one pig roaster left, but the conditions changed and the type of service 
changes, the equipment changes they must have there. They recently acquired a little 
kids train that the kids can sit in, it’s mobile and can go around the property. This is one 
item that is new, Mr. Hotz has to keep up with the times in his catering and request that 
are previously designated at the side of the building by the east wall room to put grills, 
ovens, fryers, steam tables and smokers that previously was approved by the Board of 
Appeals for ten pig roasts and two refrigerator trailers. They will request the Board, if 
they want to, rescind the other item granted by the Board of Appeals for the stored 
roasters there. Mr. Hotz is here to answer any questions. 
 
Rich Hotz, 27052 Ryan Road in Warren, introduced himself. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz said this is a public hearing and asked if any members of the 
public wished to speak on this item. 
 
No audience. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz closed the public hearing and turned this matter over to the 
Board. He wanted to get one item of clarification, because this is how he understood it. 
He asked the outside storage area is staying the same, all he’s asking for is a change 
of what he can store inside there, correct? 
 
Kerm Billette replied exactly. 
 
Rich Hotz explained with the way, they do fencing now, portable fencing for example 
CJ Barrymore’s when they build new stuff, City of Royal Oak they put cargo fencing so 
that will be back there, a train, they have little refrigerator trailers, no one is renting the 
semi trailers anymore, so they have those. Pretty much all catering, rental stuff that 
they do. They have some big bags for water because they put up tents, just stuff like 
that. 
 
Kerm Billette said it’s exactly the same area. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 25 

 

 

Chairman Nestorowicz said he just wanted to get that clarification. He has one ques-
tion because he is very familiar with the property because he drives up and down Ryan 
often. Last time he drove by, he still had barbed wire on the front gate, did he not? 
 
Rich Hotz said razor wire. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz said yes, the razor wire. 
 
Rich Hotz explained that’s been off for nine years. Now they’re having issue with the 
fence that they had barbed wire when they went to court. It’s just over the two rolling 
gates, that’s all they have there. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz said so yes, the barbed wire still on the gate. 
 
Rich Hotz stated he’s working with the City Attorney right now because she is going 
back into the files. His lawyer’s partner passed away and then they threw away all his 
records because that’s what they did. 
 
Kerm Billette said previously the whole wall and fence around the property had the wire 
on it and most of it was taken down except for the two gates.  
 
Secretary S. Brasza drove past the property herself today and noticed him being at; 
and apologized for pronouncing his name wrong. His address at 20754, she asked him 
to tell her 20740 east, south of him… 
 
Rich Hotz said that’s their office. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza asked if that was his office and if he owned that. So all those vehi-
cles in the front there are his? 
 
Rich Hotz said he owns that across the street, yes. That’s all his property. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza went around to that back street which is Dean. She asked if had a 
vehicle blocking off an entrance, or what it looks like it could have been an alley at one 
time. She wondered if that is his also. 
 
Rich Hotz wasn’t sure and asked today. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza answered yes. 
 
Rich Hotz asked if it had his name on it. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza replied yes. 
 
Rich Hotz didn’t know. He thought it might have been a car, because there is a car 
back there now. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 26 

 

 

Secretary S. Brasza said what makes her question, he doesn’t happen to own those 
two homes. 
 
Rich Hotz replied yes. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza said oh he does, that’s why his fencing is there in between those 
homes. She thanked him. She asked if there was any further discussion. 
 
Board Member Furgal said that place has been there for a long time and they’ve had 
issues with razor wire, they’ve had issues with parking vehicles where they’re not sup-
posed to be parked and the equipment he’s talking about has been stored outside for a 
very long time and the reason he wanted to put up a building. She remembers all this 
stuff, he wanted to put up a building because he wanted to put all that stuff inside and 
now he wants to put way more stuff outside and she is not going to vote for that; she 
wants him to know that. It’s a mess there all the time and now he’s got a building 
across the street that he’s also parking trucks all over the place. So, it’s a mess and 
she’s not in favor of it. 
 
Board Member Fisher wants more clarification on the razor wire. He wondered if there 
is still currently razor wire there without permission along the gate. 
 
Rich Hotz said the gate, it’s not razor it’s barbed wire.  
 
Board Member Furgal said there is no permission for that either. 
 
Board Member Fisher is asking that there is no permission from the City to have that 
there.  
 
Rich Hotz informed she is looking the records right now. When they went to court, 37th 
District, they said they could leave the barbed wire because it’s grandfathered in; they 
took all the razor wire down because they had so much stuff stolen there all the time, 
people jumping the fence stealing stuff. Then suddenly, six months ago, this lady went 
out herself and saw it but it’s been up there since they took the razor wire down eight 
years ago, whenever they went to court. So, it’s been there a long time and she just 
happened to notice it this sort of fence, the rolling gates.  
 
Board Member Fisher explained they’re showing that there was two separate occa-
sions where it was denied for… 
 
Rich Hotz said razor wire, correct.  
 
Board Member Fisher said without seeing something that that’s allowed by the City, 
he’s very reluctant himself to grant another variance where he’s not complying there. 
He doesn’t like the idea of barbed wire on businesses such as this.  
 
Rich Hotz says it’s just on the gate and the City Attorney is looking at it right now as we 
speak. They’re going to meet and get together in two months from now. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 27 

 

 

 
Board Member Fisher said as it stands, he can’t support this.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked Mr. Murphy if he had any background or what’s going on 
regarding the barbed wire on the fence.  
 
Everett Murphy said he does. The razor wire was actually denied by this Board and 
supported by Circuit Court so he had to remove the razor wire. They do have some 
ongoing enforcement issues on the property right now, the barbed wire has come up 
and the City Attorney, one of the City Attorney’s are looking into that right now. He 
doesn’t believe they have permission to have the barbed wire, he says he does. Again, 
that particular item is being researched by the City Attorney. The other enforcement 
items, the trucks and everything else they’re currently working that.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz thanked him. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza asked Mr. Murphy when he’s currently working on all of the vehi-
cles, what does that mean? 
 
Everett Murphy said that means Mr. Hotz has been sent enforcement letters and given 
compliance dates and he’s expected to comply within those dates or a reasonable 
amount of time and if he doesn’t they’ll take further action. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza thanked him. She wondered if she could get Mr. Hotz’s comment 
on that. 
 
Rich Hotz didn’t hear what she said. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza said in regards to his vehicles and such he’s been cited. 
 
Rich Hotz said he has so many trucks and then… They’re just busy. They need twenty 
trucks and they have twenty trucks. They’re all licensed and everything because 
they’re busy. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza doesn’t believe that is their issue though. The issue is what Board 
Member Furgal has stated, he has them all over. She noticed today and that’s why she 
wondered if that property is his because the Board doesn’t have that information. It 
seems like, her moving back into Dean Street, she noticed he has those two properties 
and it makes her wonder why she doesn’t utilize that property in the back of his facility 
for those vehicles. Not only can you come in from Dean, which he had blocked off with 
the van, but he has multiple driveways on the main street.  
 
Rich Hotz said they have to keep the alley vacated. They went back, Mr. Billette did 
that before but they had to keep the alley vacated through Taco Bell. Then like she 
said, he wanted to. He applied for the fence permit a long time ago and didn’t know 
had to keep the alley vacated, which they have to. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 28 

 

 

Secretary S. Brasza said but with those properties he has behind him, he still has an 
awful lot of area to put all those vehicles but yet he has them out front. 
 
Rich Hotz said he can’t park on the grass. 
 
Kerm Billette stated if it was paved, yes. The future drawings he did before showed the 
trucks parked down there after it’s paved. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza asked if he ever planned on doing that.  
 
Rich Hotz answered yes. The economy went bad, the depression hit and then didn’t 
have any money. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza said because at this point he’s being cited for that stuff. 
 
Rich Hotz said right, correct but business is phenomenal and they’re really busy. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza said good to hear and thanked him. 
 
Kerm Billette informed that in conversation right here, just now Mr. Hotz offered to take 
the barbed wire down from the fence area if it’s going to be a problem.  
 
Rich Hotz said if it helps to get approved.  
 
Secretary S. Brasza said they could put that in the motion and wondered if there was 
any further discussion. 
 
Board Member Pauta asked Mr. Hotz what his time frame is with making all the correc-
tions. 
 
Rich Hotz asked about taking the barbed wire down; tomorrow morning. 
 
Board Member Pauta asked about all the other issues that the City is citing him for. 
 
Rich Hotz said he’s getting an occupancy permit for the building across the street, they 
have to take the wall down, he talked to Mr. Murphy just ten minutes ago about it. 
 
Board Member Pauta asked what the time frame on getting… 
 
Rich Hotz said probably four months, maybe, at least because that building across the 
street where the trucks are, the roofs bad; he had his roofer guy go over there and he 
said his roof is junk and the truss’ are bad. So they’re going to take that all out and 
there some splitting in the bricks so they’re going to have put four more courses to 
make it alright. Then put a new roof on it; it all takes time. 
 
Board Member Pauta has a thought to reschedule this for four months from now. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 29 

 

 

Rich Hotz wants to get into compliance with the storage. 
 
Board Member Pauta says she knows, sir.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz informed Board Member Pauta that part of those are being part 
of enforcement, that’s not really part of… You can use the barbed wire as a condition 
but the other items he’s working on with Mr. Murphy, that’s between enforcement and 
himself. 
 
Board Member Pauta sighed.  
 
Motion: 
Secretary S. Brasza made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to allow stor-
age of catering equipment such as grills, ovens, fryers, steam tables and smokers; 
have the barbed wire removed as per the petitioner’s statement. Reasons being: prop-
erty is unique and not a detriment to the area. 
 
Board Member H. Brasza supported the motion with comment. He said the Board 
needs to expressly say it’s going to be on the hard surface, this extra storage, not just 
anywhere on the property. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz said it’s not extra storage, it’s still the same storage. 
 
Board Member H. Brasza said the equipment has to be on the hard surface. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz said it has to be within where on the drawing it shows outdoor 
storage. 
 
Board Member H. Brasza said ok. 
 
Roxanne Canestrelli, Assistant City Attorney, explained the outdoor storage is already 
in existence. Allowing the contents inside is changing; is that correct? 
 
Rich Hotz replied right.  
 
Roxanne Canestrelli replied yes. 
 
Rich Hotz informed they have trains for the kids now and good stuff like that. 
 
Roxanne Canestrelli thanked him. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz has a motion by Secretary S. Brasza, support by Board Mem-
ber H. Brasza to grant the petitioner’s request, reasons being a unique property and 
not a detriment to the neighborhood.  
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion failed (4 – 3). 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 30 

 

 

 
Secretary S. Brasza   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Fisher   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion 

with removal. 

Board Member Furgal   No, it’s a detriment to the area. 

Board Member Sophiea  No, it would be a detriment to the neighborhood. 

Board Member Pauta   No, it’s a detriment to the area. 

Chairman Nestorowicz  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

 

Chairman Nestorwicz explained the vote is four to three, need to get five.  

 
The Petitioner’s request has been DENIED, have to get five votes. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz wondered about the next steps. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza said to table it and come back when there is more.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz mentioned again the petition has not been granted because 
they did not get the five votes need to get, that was four to three.  
 
Rich Hotz asked if he can come back again when the other two voters are here.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz informed the motion has been denied. He can work with Mr. 
Murphy to see what his next opportunity or steps can be.  
 
Inaudible.  
 
 

16. ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING: APPLICANT: Mr. Glenn Holman-USE- 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Kerm Billette, PCP; Glenn and Larry Holman 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  3599 Nine Mile Road 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-30-453-031 
ZONE:     C-1 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to:-USE- 
1. Operate an automotive repair business (major) in a C-1 zoned district. 
2. Allow an automotive repair business (major) adjacent to a residential district. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 13.01: Uses permitted. Major auto repair is not allowed in a C-1 district. 
Section 14.01 (j): Automobile repair shops, including body and fender business, 
provided that such uses are conducted within an enclosed building, and provided 
further that such establishments are located at least two hundred (200) feet from any 
residential district. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 31 

 

 

Chairman Nestorowicz said before they begin on item 16, he knows the applicant is Mr. 
Glenn Holman and Mr. Billette is the representative. This item is a use variance, he 
wanted to make it clear that they understand they need to get six votes in favor of this 
before they begin. He probably at the beginning realized that there is two missing 
Board Members. He asked them if they would still like to proceed with this request to-
day. 
 
Glenn Holman replied no he would not and would like to schedule for another meeting. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz informed April 27th is the next meeting they have an opening at 
and wondered if that would be a good date for him. 
 
Glenn Holman answered that’s perfect and thanked the Board. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated if there is anyone here for item number 16 for public 
hearing… Is there a motion? 
 
Motion: 
Secretary S. Brasza made a motion to table public hearing number 16, use, 3599 Nine 
Mile to April 27, 2016. Board Member Sophiea supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz has a motion by Secretary S. Brasza with support by Board 
Member Sophiea to table item number 16 to April 27th.  
 
Voice Vote:  
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (7 – 0). 
 
The Petitioner’s request has been RESCHEDULED.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz informed April 27th will be the hearing and there will not be any 
new posting going out on this, this is your only notification for that. 
 
Glenn Holman thanked the Board. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz will see him next month. 
 

17. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT: Rev. Barbara A. Williams, 
        Grace & Truth Ministries dba Ministry 
        of the Watchman Intl. 

REPRESENTATIVE:   Same as above. 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  4616 & 4620 Nine Mile 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-32-127-033 
ZONE:     C-1 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
1. Allow a church facility on a lot that is 6,594.82 sq. ft. 
2. Allow a church facility on a lot that is 34 feet wide. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 32 

 

 

3. Allow a church facility to retain an existing 4 foot wall. 
4. Allow a church facility in a commercial building at 16 feet to the front property line. 
5. Allow a church facility with a west side yard of 2 ft. and an east side yard of 0 ft. 
6. Waive 8 required off-street parking spaces. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 5.11 Churches, schools, libraries and civic clubs Paragraph (2): That the 
size of the site shall be a minimum of one-half (1/2) acre (21,780 sq. ft.), shall have a 
lot width of not less than one hundred (100) feet and a lot depth of not less than two 
hundred (200) feet. 
Section 5.11 Churches, schools, libraries and civic clubs Paragraph (5): That a six 
(6) foot wall or eight (8) foot greenbelt pursuant to section 2.26 of this ordinance, be 
provided where the site abuts a residential district or residential use or is adjacent to an 
alley which abuts a residential district or residential use. 
Section 5.11 Churches, schools, libraries and civic clubs Paragraph (8): Every 
building shall have a front yard of not less than thirty (30) feet. 
Section 5.11 Churches, schools, libraries and civic clubs Paragraph (9): Every 
building shall have two (2) side yards of not less than twenty (20) feet each. 
Section 5.11 Churches, schools, libraries and civic clubs Paragraph (12): Off-
street parking facilities shall be provided as specified in section 4.32 of this ordinance.  
 
Reverend Barbara Williams said good evening and appreciates the Board’s time and 
appreciate the Board’s… 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked her to please state her name and address for the record 
first. 
 
Reverend Barbara Williams apologized.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz continued and then the reasons. 
 
Reverend Barbara Williams, President of Grace & Truth Ministries and Senior Pastor of 
the Ministry of Watchman International and lives at 15360 Cowley Road in Columbia 
Station, Ohio, prepared just a small statement what they need from the Board. They’re 
appealing to this Board for concessions regarding the building located at 4616 east 
Nine Mile Road. Their reasons for the appeal are simple, they would like to complete 
their mission to be an asset to the community of Warren in the following ways: to serve 
the community as a center for prayer and spiritual teaching, encourage stability in 
households through teaching a biblical way of living, to serve as a place of worship and 
gathering of persons together in hope and instruction and peaceful community living, 
and they need a facility to do preparation for their televised sermons, editing of their TV 
services and also preparation of tape and book ministry they have had for the thirty 
years they have been in ministry. They realize this community has long established 
guidelines for churches. They’re seeking consideration for adjustments to that model 
as families and their needs have changed. The traditional church was much larger and 
supported by a denomination that had a structure much different from the modern in-
dependent church that seeks to house a very small congregation. The average church 
size is only eighty persons with a size and number of churches shrinking, in the last 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 33 

 

 

one hundred years the number of churches are half of what they used to be. They are 
requesting consideration for the needs of their small church. Currently, they only have 
about a dozen members in their church, they are requesting permission to have a 
church size of a maximum of thirty-five to forty persons. They have obtained permis-
sion from the business’ adjacent to this property. One of the business’ have given them 
permission to use about seven to twelve of their parking spaces; that would give them 
enough parking for forty to sixty persons but they really have a maximum seating ca-
pacity of forty persons. The modern is changing in many, many ways. She knows the 
Board’s model is probably based on the denominational model of Catholic churches, 
Protestant churches that serve the diocese in a given area. Independent churches are 
very different, they have to have a size that is commensurate with the number of peo-
ple they have to pay for such a building. A larger building would never accomplishable 
for the size and the projected size of their congregation. So, for that reason they’re ask-
ing permission for these variances. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz said this is a public hearing and asked if any members of the 
public would like to speak on this item. 
 
No audience. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz closed the public hearing and turned this matter over to the 
Board.  
 
Secretary S. Brasza said to the petitioner they stated they have a agreement for park-
ing with someone, she asked who that would be. 
 
Reverend Barbara Williams said she is going to ask her associate minister Mrs. Lowe 
to speak on that because she had spoken with the members. She knows that Tubby’s 
agreed, they share the parking lot with them. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza said correct. 
 
Reverend Barbara Williams informed they have encouraged them; they’re glad there is 
someone in the building finally because it would encourage business towards them. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza asked if that agreement is in writing. 
 
Reverend Barbara answer yes, they do have those in writing. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza said great, and asked if the Board can see that. 
 
Shannon Crawly, 20210 Parkside Street in Saint Clair Shores, stated she’s assistant to 
Pastor Barbara Williams and she’s been in communication with Mr. Murphy. They do 
have a lease with Tom Paganes, whose President, and in the lease it gives permission 
to share the parking with Tubby’s and he also contacted the owner of the Seven Sea’s 
Market, which is just east of their property, and they have about fifty parking spaces in 
their lot they’ve given permission for overflow parking of up to twelve parking spaces. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 34 

 

 

They’re waiting to get a copy of that writing; they have a verbal agreement with them, 
but they haven’t been able to catch up with them to get it in writing just as of yet and 
should have it by the end of the month.  
 
Secretary S. Brasza called Mr. Murphy up to asked him a question. She wondered if he 
has seen the letters. 
 
Everett Murphy answered he has not seen the letters that they’re talking about tonight, 
however, looking at the site plan when they reviewed, Tubby’s is actually short parking 
spaces from what they’re required. So they don’t really have parking spaces… 
 
Secretary S. Brasza said to give. 
 
Everett Murphy agreed; from the planning and zoning perspective to be able to use 
those spaces.  
 
Secretary S. Brasza said if that be the case, the Board can’t honor the letters because 
Tubby’s doesn’t have the parking spaces to give.  
 
Everett Murphy agreed, they are actually short of what they’re required to have. 
There’s a couple of assumptions on this plan, just to let the Board know, that pie 
shaped area at the bottom, if they have the plan out, is actually owned by the City of 
Warren. The assumption being that if they require the six foot wall, that’s assuming the 
property owner is intending to acquire that property from the city. He doesn’t know, he 
believes that might have been discussed with the property owner and Ron Wuerth in 
Planning; that’s one of the items. If that’s not the case and they can’t acquire it then 
they would need some kind of a cross access agreement because short of that this 
plan is incorrect. They would have no access to the dumpster enclosure, they wouldn’t 
actually have that one way lane at the bottom; that is actually city property.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz asked if Planning has approved this plan. 
 
Everett Murphy said Planning has tabled this item. Planning has not given approval for 
a church yet. This is a very tight site. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza said it’s terribly tight and she drove it today. 
 
Board Member Furgal thinks it should also be noted that the Seven Sea’s Market does 
not own that property that they’re at; they’re leasing it as well, they do not own it. The 
owners name, she forgot his last name but his name is Bob. She lived down the street 
there forever and she’s very familiar with that area. She knows that he leased that 
property; she thinks he still owns it.  
 
Everett Murphy thinks that Planning did have some mention of a shared parking 
agreement. Again, Tubby’s doesn’t have that parking to share. He was not aware until 
he heard tonight when they were talking to the Board about the parking with the Seven 
Sea’s. He did have two very lengthy conversations. He has known Reverend Williams 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 35 

 

 

from before, she had another church in the city at a different location, so he’s worked 
with her in the past. He did have a lengthy conversation with her about her application. 
If the Board gets a copy of the application out, it was in the packet. He asked her to 
address certain items on here and hoped she would do that. He did let her know that 
he was concerned that they did not address his concerns on the application but that he 
wouldn’t hold it from going forward. When it asks please explain the nature of the hard-
ship, three of the four items given are involving a property that has absolutely nothing 
to do with this property; it’s not a valid hardship for this property. The one thing men-
tioned in item four talks about their needs and budget, and economics is not really 
something that the Board can hear; so he was concerned about that. When going back 
to the worksheet #1 in the back, the answers to the unreasonable impact and burden 
actually go right into the not self imposed and into the property uniqueness; not ad-
dressing any of the items that were asked to do. He talked to them on the phone about 
this and asked them to please reconsider those and redo that. They did redo them but 
it’s not… 
 
Inaudible. 
 
Everett Murphy explained that one of the things about the property being unique; how 
is it unique from the other properties around, there is not answer to that. Not a detri-
ment to the area, from a zoning perspective this is very tight and this has the potential 
to impact the neighbors immediately should with the number of people that they’re 
even talking about. Forty people, how many vehicles is that? If they were to expand 
there is nothing to stop them from stopping. If they were to expand, where are they go-
ing to park, where are they going to go. When he had asked the reason for not increas-
ing the wall height from four feet to six feet, it was stated to him it was for cost. He let 
her know that’s not a valid hardship, can’t even consider that. He’s not really sure what 
other reason they would have for not wanting to raise it other than the expense of rais-
ing, which would be expensive and he realizes that. These are just some of the con-
cerns he did ask them to address and he wasn’t really satisfied. Normally with these 
types of answers he would not let this variance go to the Board, but due to the nature 
of it, especially being a church, he didn’t want anyone to say that he was being unfair 
to the churches so he allowed it to go forward as it is.  
 
Secretary S. Brasza thanked Mr. Murphy. Just to wrap up on her non use variance, 
there’s criteria and there are six very important criteria’s. One, is it self imposed or not; 
to her this is totally self imposed. Is the property unique; no she wouldn’t say the prop-
erty is unique, it’s a pretty small little postage stamp piece of property. Is it a detriment; 
to her it’s a detriment to the area to not have a six foot wall when you have such a 
small facility. So, there’s three of the five right now. Is it personal or economic; in the 
application it sounds very personal. Lack of identification; well that’s not pertaining to 
this. There’s too many of the categories defined for a use, non use variance that aren’t 
met that for that reason she is going to be stating no. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz has a problem that it hasn’t had approval from Planning yet. He 
would actually like to see Planning make the determination on this plan prior to coming 
back to the Board.  



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 36 

 

 

 
Shannon Crawly explained they went to the Planning Commission in December and 
they tabled it pending the Board’s approval. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza said they would play volleyball but it’s basically, the Board tends to 
prefer Planning see it first and then have it come to zoning. What they do if they were 
to put this through would tie their hands and that’s something they prefer not to do.  
 
Tom Paganes said he would like to say something. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza said not at this time.  
 
Board Member Pauta doesn’t see how the Board can approve this. Being at the prop-
erty, they know that Tubby’s is short to begin with plus drive-thru, plus other properties 
that are owned by the city. She thinks these items should be addressed by the Rever-
end before she comes back to here or Planning.  
 
Chairman Nestorowicz said that’s right. He sees that Planning needs to actually make 
a determination because of the parking issues and all that, he thinks Planning really 
needs to make their determination first, prior to the Board.  
 
Secretary S. Brasza said versus just not giving permission. She would like to make a 
motion if there is no further discussion.  
 
Motion: 
Secretary S. Brasza made a motion to deny the petitioner’s request to allow a church 
facility on that is 6,594.82 sq ft; not allow a church facility on a lot that is 34 feet wide; 
not allow a church facility to retain an existing 4 foot wall; not allow a church facility in a 
commercial building at 16 feet to the front property line; not allow a church facility with 
a west side yard of 2 ft and an east side yard of 0 ft; not waive 8 required off-street 
parking spaces. Due to: self imposed and the property is not unique.  
 
Board Member Fisher supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz has motion by Secretary S. Brasza, support by Board Member 
Fisher to deny the petitioner’s request reasons being self imposed, detriment to the ar-
ea and property not unique. Roll Call. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza explained a yes vote. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz stated a yes vote is a yes to deny. 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to deny and the motion carried (5 – 2). 
 
Secretary S. Brasza   Yes, to deny. 

Board Member Fisher   Yes, to deny for the reasons stated on the record. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 37 

 

 

Board Member Furgal   No, would rather give them time to get everything 

worked out. 

Board Member Sophiea  Yes, to deny.. 

Board Member Pauta   Yes, to deny to till they address all the issues 

they’re required to do. 

Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, to deny. Hopes they can find a  

better location. 

Chairman Nestorowicz  No, just needs to get Planning approval before 

coming to the Board. 

 
The Petitioner’s request has been DENIED. 
 
Tom Paganes asked as the owner of the property if he had the right to say anything. 
 
Secretary S. Brasza said not at this time. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz said not at this time. The time to make comments were at the 
beginning or during the public hearing.  
 
Tom Paganes didn’t know he had to speak until after the Board got done. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz unfortunately the ruling… 
 
Inaudible.  
 
Secretary S. Brasza said item number 18. 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz said one moment.  
 
Inaudible. 
 
Roxanne Canestrelli said due to a miscommunication, go ahead and speak. 
 
Tom Paganes, founder of the Tabby’s sub shop, explained that location has been there 
since 1979. The concerns about the parking are totally unfounded, they’ve never, it’s a 
90% carry out location, so they never have a filled parking lot, that’s number one. 
Number two, the variances that are being asked for are just variances. On that street 
since he’s been there, there was one vacancy on that street when he first moved in, in 
1979. There are fifty-two units on that street and right now there are twenty-two that 
are vacant, seven that are boarded and God knows if they’re occupied or not, you have 
seven vacant lots. It’s the only strip in Macomb County that is totally under developed 
and the reason it’s underdeveloped is because of the reasons he sees here tonight. 
His estimation, totally irresponsible on the Board’s part to not grant these people. 
There is no physical reason, that place has been there forty years, never had a parking 
problem. The lot in the back is down another four feet, so that wall technically is ten 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2016 
Page 38 

 

 

feet tall. So, all these concerns the Board has in his estimation are not in the best in-
terest of that neighborhood, you might want to have two more vacant properties there. 
He’s going to tell them something else, he’s turned down two smoke shops, three tat-
too shops and one adult business. He’s lowered the rent on the places, he’s getting 
less rent on that place now than he did fifteen years ago. He’s done his job but he’s 
unwilling to see the city do its job. 
 
Roxanne Canestrelli said due to a miscommunication and now that he has spoken. 
She asked if any Board member wishes to do a motion to reconsider after hearing the 
owner’s statements.  
 
No response. 
 
Roxanne Canestrelli said hearing and seeing none… 
 
Chairman Nestorowicz said not seeing any other motions to reconsider then unfortu-
nately the petition’s been denied as stands from the previous vote. 
 
Tom Paganes said congratulations.  

 
18. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 No new business. 

 
19. ADJOURNMENT  

 
Motion: 
Board Member S. Brasza made the motion to adjourn the meeting; Board Member 
Fisher supported the motion. 
 
Voice Vote:  
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (7 – 0). 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:14 p.m. 

 
 
 
        Sherry Brasza 
        Secretary of the Board 


